CAMBRIDGE UNIVERSITY **REPORTER**

No 6303

WEDNESDAY 17 APRIL 2013

Vol cxliii No 26

CONTENTS

CONTENTS	
Notices	
Calendar	437
Notice of an additional Discussion on Tuesday,	
23 April 2013	437
Notice of a benefaction	437
Election of Student Members of the Council	
and of the General Board: Notice	437
Nominating Committee for External Members	
of the Council and Board of Scrutiny:	
Election	438
Election of a member of the Council's Finance	
Committee in class (b): Notice	439
Fitzwilliam Museum Courtauld Galleries	
Environmental Control Project Phase I:	
Notice	439
Annual Reports: Notice	440
Vacancies, appointments, etc.	
Electors to the Professorship of English and	
Applied Linguistics: Notice	440
Vacancies in the University	440
Elections	441
Awards, etc.	
Crane's Charity for the relief of poor sick	
scholars: Notice by the Distributors	441
Scholarships and Prizes, etc. awarded	442
Events, courses, etc.	
Announcement of lectures, seminars, etc.	443
Notices by the General Board	
Open Access Online Teaching and Learning:	
Notice	443
University Research Ethics Committee	443
Regulations for examinations	
Economics Tripos, Part IIB	444
Education Tripos	444
Examination in Innovation, Strategy, and	
Organization for the M.Phil. Degree	444
Examination in International Relations for the	
degree of Master of Studies	444
Diplomas and Certificates open to non-	
members of the University: Notice	445

Postgraduate Certificates of Practitioner	
Professional Development	445
Notices by Faculty Boards, etc.	
Examination for the degree of Master of	
Business Administration, Easter Term 2013	445
Examination for the degree of Master of	
Finance, Easter Term 2013	447
Meeting of the Faculty Board of Economics:	
Notice	447
Class-lists, etc.	
Allowances to candidates for examinations	448
Approved for degrees, diplomas, and	
certificates	448
Act for the Degree of Doctor of Medicine	451
Obituaries	
Obituary Notice	451
Acta	
Approval of Graces submitted to the Regent	
House on 13 March 2013	451
Approval of Graces submitted to the Regent	
House on 20 March 2013	451
Approval of Graces submitted to the Senate on	
20 March 2013	451
Congregation of the Regent House on	
23 March 2013	452
End of the Official Part of the 'Reporter'	

College Notices	
Elections	463
Vacancies	463
Events	463
Societies, etc.	
Cambridge Philosophical Society	463
External Notices	
University of Oxford	464
Other External Notices	464



NOTICES

Calendar

17 April, Wednesday. Easter Term begins.

- 23 April, *Tuesday*. Full Term begins. Discussion at 2 p.m. in the Senate-House (see below). Mere's Commemoration. Sermon in St Bene't's Church. Preacher, The Reverend Dr Cally Hammond, Dean of Gonville and Caius College, 11.45 a.m.
- 27 April, Saturday. Congregation of the Regent House at 11 a.m.

30 April, Tuesday. Discussion at 2 p.m. in the Senate-House.

Discussions at 2 p.m.

Congregations

 23 April
 23 March, Saturday at 10 a.m.

 30 April
 27 April, Saturday at 11 a.m.

 14 May
 11 May, Saturday at 10 a.m.

 28 May
 11 May, Saturday at 10 a.m.

Notice of an additional Discussion on Tuesday, 23 April 2013

The Vice-Chancellor invites those qualified under the regulations for Discussions (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 107) to attend a Discussion in the Senate-House, on Tuesday, 23 April 2013, at 2 p.m., for the discussion of:

1. Joint Report of the Council and the General Board, dated 6 and 18 March 2013, on IT infrastructure and support (*Reporter*, 6302, 2012–13, p. 418).

2. Joint Report of the Council and the General Board, dated 6 and 18 March 2013, on amendments to the pay and grading scheme for non-clinical staff implemented following the Second Joint Report of 25 July 2005 (*Reporter*, 6302, 2012–13, p. 423).

3. Report of the Council, dated 18 March 2013, on the future of the Management Committee of the University Health Services and its sub-groups (*Reporter*, 6302, 2012–13, p. 431).

4. Report of the General Board, dated 6 February 2013, on the establishment of a Royal Society Research Professorship of Earth Sciences (*Reporter*, 6302, 2012–13, p. 433).

5. Report of the General Board, dated 6 March 2013, on the re-establishment of a Professorship in the Sainsbury Laboratory (*Reporter*, 6301, 2012–13, p. 408).

6. Report of the General Board, dated 6 February 2013, on the establishment of a Readership in Number Theory (*Reporter*, 6301, 2012–13, p. 408).

As mentioned previously, this is an additional date for Discussion that has been added to the schedule of meetings. The Reports numbered 5 and 6 above have been brought forward for inclusion in the Discussion on 23 April, instead of on 30 April 2013 as previously tabled (*Reporter*, 6301, 2012–13, p. 396).

Notice of a benefaction

21 March 2013

The Vice-Chancellor gives notice that he has received with gratitude a benefaction of CHF 12,000,000 from the MAVA Fondation pour la Nature to support the refurbishment of the Arup Building in which the Cambridge Conservation Initiative will be based (*Reporter*, 6299, 2012–13, p. 384).

Election of Student Members of the Council and of the General Board: Notice

27 March 2013

The Vice-Chancellor gives notice that, in the election held from Monday, 4 March to Wednesday, 6 March 2013, the following persons were elected to be the student members of the Council and the General Board in class (*d*):

COUNCIL

Category (i) – All eligible students (2 places)

OLD, Rosalyn, R OSBORN, Flick, JN

Category (*ii*) – *All eligible graduate students* (*1 place*) JONES, Richard, *JN*

GENERAL BOARD

Category (i) – All eligible undergraduate students (1 place)

There were no eligible candidates. A bye-election will be called in due course.

Category (*ii*) – *All eligible graduate students* (*1 place*) JONES, Richard, *JN*

Nominating Committee for External Members of the Council and Board of Scrutiny: Election

12 April 2013

This Notice provides information on elections for members of both the Nominating Committee for External Members of the Council and the Board of Scrutiny.

Nominating Committee for External Members of the Council

An election of members in classes (c) and (d) of the Nominating Committee to nominate External Members of the Council is to be held in Full Easter Term when the calendar year is odd (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 116). Members in classes (c) and (d) comprise:

(c) two members elected by the Regent House from among those who at the time of election are current members of Council in classes (a), (b), and (c);

(d) four members of the Senate elected by the Regent House.

No person may be a member of the Committee in class (*d*) who is a member of the Council or who holds any of the University offices of Pro-Vice-Chancellor, Registrary, or Director or Deputy Director in the University Offices.

The Vice-Chancellor now gives notice of an election of members of the Committee as follows, to serve for four years from 1 October 2013:

(i) one member in class (*c*);

(ii) two members in class (d).

Further information about the Committee can be found in the *Statutes and Ordinances* (p. 116) and obtained from the Registrary (email registrary@admin.cam.ac.uk).

Board of Scrutiny

Under the provisions of Statute A, VII (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 10) an election of members of the Board of Scrutiny in class (*c*) is to be held in the Easter Term of each alternate year.

The Board of Scrutiny consists of:

- (a) the Proctors;
- (b) the two Pro-Proctors nominated by the Colleges;
- (c) eight members of the Regent House elected by the Regent House.

Under the provisions of Statute A, VII, 4 no person may be a member of the Board of Scrutiny who is a member of the Council, the General Board, or the Finance Committee of the Council, or who holds any of the University offices of Chancellor, Vice-Chancellor, Pro-Vice-Chancellor, University Advocate, Deputy University Advocate, Registrary, Assistant Registrary, or Secretary of a School. The Statute further prohibits from membership holders of offices with primarily administrative duties designated by Ordinance: Directors and Deputy Directors in the Unified Administrative Service and Assistant Treasurers have been designated as such prohibited offices. A retiring member of the Board who has served for four or more consecutive years is not eligible to serve again as a member in class (*c*) until one year has elapsed after the end of her or his previous period of service.

The Vice-Chancellor now gives notice of an election of members of the Board as follows, to serve for four years from 1 October 2013:

(i) one member in class (c)(i): a person who has been a member of the Regent House for not more than ten years on 1 October 2013;

(ii) three members in class (c)(ii): members of the Regent House.

Regulation 2 for the election of members of the Board of Scrutiny (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 116) provides that, if at the election insufficient nominations are received to fill all the places either in class (c)(i) or in class (c)(i), the Council shall appoint as many members as may be necessary.

Further information about the Board of Scrutiny can be found in the *Statutes and Ordinances* (pp. 10 and 116), on the Board's website (http://www.scrutiny.cam.ac.uk/), and obtained from the Chair, Dr Catherine MacKenzie (email cm517@ cam.ac.uk).

Nomination and ballot timetable

The nomination and ballot timetable for both elections is governed by Regulations 1–5 and 13 of the regulations for the Election of Members of the Council (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 114).

In order to be eligible a candidate for election must be nominated on a paper sent to the Vice-Chancellor at the Old Schools so as to reach him not later than noon on **Friday**, **10 May**. The paper must contain (a) a statement signed by two members of the Regent House, nominating the candidate for election to the Board or Nominating Committee, as appropriate, and (b) a statement signed by the candidate certifying that he or she consents to be so nominated. The candidate should also provide a *curriculum vitae* by the same date (see below).

439 CAMBRIDGE UNIVERSITY REPORTER

The Vice-Chancellor would be obliged if nominations could be delivered to the Registrary in the Old Schools during office hours. Envelopes should be clearly marked as Nomination papers. Nomination papers may also be faxed to 01223 332332 or scanned (showing signatures) and sent by email to registrary@admin.cam.ac.uk. Nominations will be published on the Senate-House noticeboard as they are received; the complete list of nominations will be published in the *Reporter* on Wednesday, 15 May.

In accordance with the regulations governing the election, each person nominated for election is required to send to the Registrary, not later than **noon on Friday**, **10 May**, a statement of her or his *curriculum vitae* for distribution to members of the Regent House with the voting papers. It is suggested that such a statement should be of not more than 500 words in length, and that it should cover the following points:

- The candidate's present position in the University.
- · Previous posts held, whether in Cambridge or in other universities or outside the university system, with dates.

• A note of the candidate's particular interests within the field of University business and experience that he or she might bring to the Committee/Board.

The election will be conducted by postal ballot, under the Single Transferable Vote regulations. Voting papers will be distributed, together with the statements provided by candidates, not later than **Monday**, **20 May**. The last date for the return of voting papers will be **5 p.m. on Thursday**, **30 May**.

The Vice-Chancellor has appointed the Registrary as Deputy Presiding Officer.

Election of a member of the Council's Finance Committee in class (b): Notice

26 March 2013

A casual vacancy has arisen for a member of the Regent House, elected by the Representatives of the Colleges, to serve on the Council's Finance Committee until 31 December 2014.

The election is conducted in accordance with the Single Transferable Vote regulations. Voting is by postal ballot.

Nominations should be made in writing to the Head of the Registrary's Office, University Offices, The Old Schools, Cambridge, CB2 1TN, and must include a statement by the person nominated that he or she is willing to serve on the Finance Committee. Nominations and statements should be made by 12 noon on Tuesday, 30 April 2013 and should be supported by the signatures of two members of the Regent House. If a ballot is necessary, papers will be despatched by Friday, 10 May, for return by 12 noon on Monday, 20 May 2013.

Fitzwilliam Museum Courtauld Galleries Environmental Control Project Phase I: Notice

25 March 2013

The following Notice is published to advise the University of works which are not considered to be a 'substantial alteration' within the meaning of Statute F, I, 2 and therefore do not require a Report but are nevertheless of interest or consequence to members of the Regent House (*Reporter*, 6259, 2011–12, p. 498).

The Fitzwilliam Museum is a Grade I Listed Building built in various phases with the Founders Building built between 1837 and 1848, and further extensions built between 1922 and 1936. The Courtyard Building was added in 2005. The Courtauld Galleries were completed in 1931, and have never provided totally satisfactory internal conditions as there are large swings in temperature and humidity. The air handling and ventilation plant put in the Galleries during the 1970s has ceased to work properly and the environmental conditions have become unacceptable and in danger of damaging the collections. In 2009, the Fitzwilliam Museum adopted the guiding principles of the European Bizot Group and the National Museum Directors Conference (NDMC) which encourage the rethinking of policy and practise with the aim of minimizing energy use and carbon emissions, as research had shown that collections are not damaged by a more sustainable and environmentally friendly approach.

A report was commissioned from Breathing Buildings exploring the holistic and sustainable approach to heating and ventilation in the six Courtauld Galleries on the First Floor of the Museum, and the concept design of a hybrid system of natural ventilation, heating, humidification, and lighting was presented in September 2010 which aligned with the guiding principles of NDMC and the European Bizot Group. After a Stage C Report which looked at applying the principles to all six galleries, Estate Management were asked to take the project forward in three phases; Phase I of the project covers the Dutch Gallery, the Charrington Print Room, and offices, and work to the large Flowers Window on the main staircase.

A scheme of refurbishment is proposed that will improve the environment of the galleries and office and minimize energy and carbon use. Existing service ducts in the Dutch Gallery will be used to contain modern ventilation and heating equipment utilizing passive ventilation techniques as far as possible. New energy-efficient LED lighting will also be installed and the walls relined with silk. New secure and double-glazed roof lights will contribute to reducing heat loss and security as well as utilizing natural light. The Charrington Print Room and office roof will be insulated and the roof-light re-glazed; passive ventilation will be introduced in both areas. The Flowers Window will be double-glazed which will reduce a significant amount of heat-loss as well as contributing to security.

Listed Building Consent is required, as well as the approval of English Heritage, and the team has been working closely with the Conservation Officer at Cambridge City Council. Mouldings and decorative plaster work will be replaced where necessary and original openings in the 1931-built Galleries used where possible.

The Minor Works Sub-Committee at their meeting on 18 January 2013 approved the budget of £1.197m and the Resource Management Committee approved the split of funding as follows: Capital Investment Fund (£477k), Fitzwilliam Museum (£187k), and the Building Maintenance Fund (£533k). The project is exempt from VAT due to the building's

status as a museum. The work covers a floor area of 245m². The committees considered the question of whether this project amounted to a 'substantial alteration' within the meaning of Statute F, I, 2 and concluded that it did not. However, both committees agreed that a Notice should be published for the information of the University.

A planning application will be submitted to Cambridge City Council after publication of this Notice. It is planned to commence the works on site in June 2013, completing in December 2013.

Annual Reports: Notice

The following Annual Reports have been received by the Council or General Board and are available on the websites indicated:

University Botanic Garden Annual Report 2010–11 Institute of Continuing Education Annual Report 2011–12	http://www.botantic.cam.ac.uk/ (from 'About us' tab) http://www.ice.cam.ac.uk/who-we-are/institute-publications
Isaac Newton Institute for Mathematical Sciences	http://www.newton.ac.uk/reports/annrep1112.pdf
Annual Report of the Kettle's Yard Committee for the year 2011–12	http://www.kettlesyard.cam.ac.uk/information/annual_reports/
Cambridge University Library Annual Report 2011–12	http://www.lib.cam.ac.uk/About/annual_report_2011-2012.pdf
Annual Report of the Press Syndicate for the year ended 30 April 2012	http://www.cambridge.org/files/8713/5766/1069/AR_2012_ FINAL.pdf
Annual Report of the ADC Theatre, 2011–12, from the University Theatre Syndicate	http://www.adctheatre.com/about-us/administration.aspx

VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS, ETC.

Electors to the Professorship of English and Applied Linguistics: Notice

The Council has appointed members of the *ad hoc* Board of Electors to the Professorship of English and Applied Linguistics as follows:

Professor Simon Franklin, CL, in the Chair, as the Vice-Chancellor's deputy

(a) on the nomination of the Council

Professor Bas Aarts, University College London Professor Ian Roberts, DOW

(b) on the nomination of the General Board

Professor Ann Copestake, W Professor Aditi Lahiri, University of Oxford Professor Rosemarie Tracy, University of Manheim

(c) on the nomination of the Faculty Board of Modern and Medieval Languages

Dr Henriëtte Hendriks, *LC* Professor William Marslen-Wilson, *W* Professor Wolfgang Klein, *Max Planck Institute for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen*

Vacancies in the University

A full list of current vacancies can be found at http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/.

BP Foundation McKenzie Professorship of Earth Sciences; informal enquiries: Professor Jackson, Head of the Department of Earth Sciences (email: jaj2@cam.ac.uk or tel. 01223 333481); closing date: 21 May 2013; further particulars: http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/offices/academic/secretary/professorships/; quote reference: LB27622

Readership in Quantitative Sociology in the Department of Sociology; salary: £55,535; closing date: 31 May 2013; further particulars: http://www.sociology.cam.ac.uk/dept/jobs.html; quote reference: ZZ27352

Clinical Lectureship in Medical Oncology or Clinical Oncology in the Department of Oncology; salary: £30,992– £53,663; closing date: 6 May 2013; further particulars: http://www.medschl.cam.ac.uk/jobs/?p=2405; quote reference: RD01007

University Lectureship or University Senior Lectureship in Hindu Studies in the Faculty of Divinity; salary: £37,382–£47,314 for a Lecturer or £50,186–£53,233 for a Senior Lecturer; closing date: 17 May 2013; further particulars: http://www.divinity.cam.ac.uk/news-and-events/vacancies; quote reference: GF27522

University Lectureship or University Senior Lectureship in Russian Literature and/or Culture in the Faculty of Modern and Medieval Languages; salary: £37,012–£46, 846 for a Lecturer, and £50,186–£53,233 for a Senior Lecturer; closing date: 9 May 2013; further particulars: http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/job/-27652/; quote reference: GJ27652

University Lectureship in Sociology in the Department of Sociology; salary: £37,382–£47,314; closing date: 31 May 2013; further particulars: http://www.sociology.cam.ac.uk/dept/jobs.html; quote reference: ZZ27362

Head of the University Counselling Service; salary: £54,826–£63,535; further particulars: http://www.admin.cam. ac.uk/offices/academic/jobs/; closing date: 23 April 2013; quote reference: XD27422

Financial Planning Accountant in the Finance Division; salary: £27,854–£36,298; closing date: 26 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/job/-27862/; quote reference: AG27862

Temporary Lectureship in the Faculty of Economics; salary: £37,382–£47,314; limit of tenure: one year from 1 September 2013; closing date: 24 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.econ.cam.ac.uk/news/notices/TL-March-13.html; quote reference: JG27462

Temporary Teaching Associate in the Faculty of Economics; salary: £27,854–£36,298; tenure: three years; closing date: 10 May 2013; further particulars: http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/job/-27762/ quote reference: JG27762

The University values diversity and is committed to equality of opportunity.

The University has a responsibility to ensure that all employees are eligible to live and work in the UK.

Elections

The following elections have been made:

- Professor David John Cameron MacKay, M.A., *T*, Ph.D., *California Institute of Technology*, Professor of Natural Philosophy, Department of Physics, elected Regius Professor of Engineering, with effect from 1 July 2013.
- Professor Richard James Holton, B.A., Oxford, Ph.D., Princeton, Professor of Philosophy, MIT, elected Professor of Philosophy, with effect from 1 September 2013.

Professor Professor Rae Langton, B.A., Sydney, Ph.D., Princeton, Professor of Philosophy, MIT, elected Professor of Philosophy, with effect from 1 September 2013.

AWARDS, ETC.

Crane's Charity for the relief of poor sick scholars: Notice by the Distributors

(Statutes and Ordinances, p. 796)

John Crane, an apothecary in the city of Cambridge in the early seventeenth century, made a number of bequests to the University (Benefaction of John Crane, 1651; *Endowments of the University of Cambridge* (CUP 1904), p. 565). Crane's Charity for the relief of poor sick scholars is the principal medical charity in the University. It exists to provide financial assistance to students who need treatment for physical or mental illness, or for injuries resulting from accidents.

The Distributors give notice that they will consider requests for assistance from individual students on the basis of an application made on their behalf by their College Tutor. Further information, including a downloadable application form, can be found at http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/students/studentregistry/fees/funding/hardship/crane.html.

The Charity has also provided financial assistance for collective activity that the Distributors have determined falls within the purposes of the Charity. Attention is drawn to the regular funding provided to sustain the mental health and psychiatric support work of the University Counselling Service: the Mental Health Advisor (funded through Crane's Charity until Lent 2016); and psychiatric advice for students provided by a consultant psychotherapist for half a day per week in Term.

The following table summarizes the expenditure from Crane's Charity in 2011–12.

Year	Number of grants	Colleges represented	Average grant to students	Expenditure: grants to students	Expenditure: collective activities	Total expenditure:
2011-12	19	10	£472	£8,964	£51,570	£60,534

Scholarships and Prizes, etc. awarded

Vj ku'eqpvgpv/j cu'dggp't go qxgf "cu'kv'eqpvckpu'r gtuqpcnkplqto cvkqp"rt qvgevgf "wpf gt "vj g'F cvc "Rt qvgevkqp"Cev0

Vj ku"eqpvgpv'j cu"dggp"t go qxgf "cu"kv"eqpvckpu"r gt uqpcrtkplqt o cvkqp"r t qvgevgf "wpf gt "vj g"F cvc "Rt qvgevkqp"Cev

EVENTS, COURSES, ETC.

Announcement of lectures, seminars, etc.

The University offers a large number of lectures, seminars, and other events, many of which are free of charge, to members of the University and others who are interested. Details can be found on Faculty and Departmental websites, and in the following resources.

The What's On website (http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/whatson/) carries details of exhibitions, music, theatre and film, courses, and workshops, and is searchable by category and date. Both an RSS feed and a subscription email service are available.

Talks.cam (http://www.talks.cam.ac.uk/) is a fully searchable talks listing service, and talks can be subscribed to and details downloaded.

Brief details of upcoming events are given below.

Equality and Diversity	The 10th Annual Disability Lecture: <i>Two steps</i> <i>forward, one step back: challenges to disabled</i> <i>people in 2013,</i> by Dame Anne Begg MP, at 5.30 p.m. on 18 April 2013	http://www.training.cam.ac.uk/ event/604516 (please book a place via this link)
Kettle's Yard	A display of work by Katie Paterson, including Fossil Necklace, from 26 April – 23 June 2013	http://www.kettlesyard.co.uk/ exhibitions/2013/paterson/index. php
West Road Concert Hall	Cambridge international piano series: Martin Roscoe piano recital, at 7.30 p.m. on 15 May 2013	http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/ whatson/detail. shtml?uid=389fb8af-01d9-49dc- 8fc5-361f2e9db53e

NOTICES BY THE GENERAL BOARD

Open Access Online Teaching and Learning: Notice

The General Board have established a group, under the Chairmanship of the Pro-Vice-Chancellor for Education, to advise the central bodies on the position which the University might take, over time, in relation to making educational material more publicly available in a web-based form, taking into account developments elsewhere in the Higher Education sector, nationally and internationally, including the development elsewhere of Massive Open Online Courses [MOOCs]. A discussion forum has been posted on forum.cam.ac.uk. Contributions from any member of the University will be welcome. Contributions may also be sent to the Deputy Academic Secretary (email duncan.mccallum@admin.cam.ac.uk) to whom enquiries about the group's work should be directed.

University Research Ethics Committee

The General Board have, on the recommendation of the University Research Ethics Committee, approved the proposal that the monitoring of research projects, which would be better undertaken at School level, be removed from the remit of the Committee. The wording of Regulation 3 (i) of the regulations for the Committee will be amended accordingly (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 664).

REGULATIONS FOR EXAMINATIONS

Economics Tripos, Part IIB

(Statutes and Ordinances, p. 303)

With effect from 1 October 2013

The General Board's Education Committee have granted permission to the Faculty Board of Economics to amend the scheme of the examination for Part IIB of the Economics Tripos for the academical year 2013–14, by withdrawing Paper 14 'World Depression in the interwar years', and by adding Paper 15 'Topics in quantitative economic history', to the list of papers on offer, for one year only.

Part IIb

Regulation 19.

By attaching a footnote to Papers 14 and 15 to indicate that Paper 15 will be available for examination in 2014 instead of Paper 14.

SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS

By attaching a footnote to Papers 14 and 15 to indicate that Paper 15 will be available for examination in 2014 instead of Paper 14.

Education Tripos

(Statutes and Ordinances, p. 312)

With effect from 1 October 2013

PART I, SCHEDULE I

Paper Ed.E3 'Shakespeare and Renaissance drama' in Schedule I of Section III is to be renamed 'Shakespeare'.

Examination in Innovation, Strategy, and Organization for the M.Phil. Degree

(Statutes and Ordinances, p. 524)

With effect from 1 October 2013

The scheme of the examination has been amended with the introduction of a new regulation as set out below (current Regulation 3 will be renumbered as 4).

3. In place of the examination prescribed for thesis specified in Regulation 1(a), the Degree Committee may permit a particular candidate to take three prescribed modules from a list approved by the Degree Committee.

Examination in International Relations for the degree of Master of Studies

(Statutes and Ordinances, p. 547)

With effect from 1 September 2013

On the recommendation of the Degree Committee for the Faculty of Human, Social, and Political Science, and with the approval of the Institute of Continuing Education Strategic Committee, the General Board have approved amendments to the special regulations for the M.St. in International Relations, with effect from 1 September 2013. Regulation 4 has been inserted as follows:

4. The Examiners may recommend to the Degree Committee that it recommends to the Institute of Continuing Education the award of the Postgraduate Diploma to a candidate who has satisfactorily completed the requirements specified in Regulation 1(c), and a candidate who has not completed, or fails to reach the required standard, in the thesis.

Diplomas and Certificates open to non-members of the University: Notice

(Statutes and Ordinances, p. 576)

With effect from 1 September 2013

Diplomas Institute of Continuing Education

The General Board have approved the following additions to the Schedule to Diplomas and Certificates open to nonmembers of the University:

Postgraduate Diploma in History Postgraduate Diploma in International Relations

Certificates Institute of Continuing Education

The General Board have approved the following amendments to the Schedule to Diplomas and Certificates open to nonmembers of the University:

Certificate in English Literature to be renamed Certificate in English Literature I Certificate in History of Art to be renamed Certificate in History of Art II

The General Board have approved the following additions to the Schedule to Diplomas and Certificates open to nonmembers of the University:

Certificate in Philosophy I and II Certificate in English Literature II Certificate in History of Art I Certificate in Physical Sciences Certificate in Evolutionary Biology

Certificate of Higher Education in Philosophy Certificate of Higher Education in English Literature Certificate of Higher Education in History of Art Certificate of Higher Education in Genetics and Evolution

Postgraduate Certificates of Practitioner Professional Development

(Statutes and Ordinances, p. 579)

With immediate effect

Candidates who have already completed either (i) two 60-hour Postgraduate Certificates in Professional Study; or (ii) a Postgraduate Certificate in Educational Research prior to October 2012 will be permitted up to two years from the start of the academical year 2012–13 to take elements they need from the new awards to achieve a 90-credit Postgraduate Diploma, subject to the candidate completing the Postgraduate Diploma within the four-year time frame. From the academical year 2014–15 all students are expected to be studying on the Faculty's Postgraduate Advanced Certificate in Educational Studies.

NOTICES BY FACULTY BOARDS, ETC.

Examination for the degree of Master of Business Administration, Easter Term 2013

The Faculty Board of Business and Management give notice that in the Easter Term 2013 of academical year 2012–13 the subjects for examination for the M. B. A. Degree will be as listed below. The method of examination is shown for each subject.

4 (a) One-year course

6. (b) Course-work (compulsory subjects)

MBA12 Corporate governance and ethics MBA13 Leadership in action MBA54 Macroeconomics

MBA35 Concentration capstone project

The concentration capstone project is split between the

following subjects. Each student is required to choose one project:

Individual assignment (60%), class participation (40%) Attendance only (100%) Group assignment (25%), individual assignment (75%)

- (ii) Cultural, arts, and media management
- (iii) Energy and environment
- (iv) Entrepreneurship
- (v) Finance
- (vi) Global business
- (vii) Health
- (viii) Strategy and marketing

MBA36 Summer activity

- All students are required to undertake one of the following:
 - (i) Intensive courses
 (ii) Study trip abroad
 (iii) Practical (internship, dissertation, project, case study, Individual assignment (100%)
 MBA specific language course at CULC)
 (iv) Independent
 Individual assignment (100%)

MBA76 Participation peer review

6. (b) Course-work (elective subjects)

- MBA98 Advanced strategy
- MBA71 Asian capital markets (MGM12 Paper MFIN33) MBA83 Behavioural finance
- MBA84 Cases in corporate finance II
- MBA37 Changing the game: business models, innovation, and strategy
- MBA38 Consumer behaviour
- MBA41 Energy and emissions markets and policies
- MBA42 Entrepreneurship: emerging technologies (ETECH projects)
- MBA43 Entrepreneurship: how to start a technology company
- MBA95 Financial market trading simulation MBA23 Global marketing
- MBA105 Growing your start-up
- MBA48 Hedge funds
- MBA75 Infrastructure finance (MGM12 Paper MFIN31)
- MBA96 Innovation and marketing in emerging economies
- MBA50 International business and management
- MBA73 International film business
- MBA53 Managing service operations
- MBA57 Mergers and acquisitions
- MBA58 New venture finance
- MBA85 Options, futures, and derivatives
- MBA60 Pharmaceuticals and biotechnology
- MBA28 Private equity
- MBA103 Risk management and strategic planning MBA40 Special topics in cultural, arts, and media management
- MBA64 Strategic brand management
- MBA65 Supply chain strategy
- MBA31 The coming of modern capital markets (MGM12 Paper MFIN21)
- MBA66 The liberalization and regulation of international financial markets
- MBA44 Venture capital and the entrepreneurial world

Individual presentation (50%), individual assignment

(30%), class participation (20%) Class participation (30%), group presentation (30%), individual assignment (40%) Class participation (40%), group assignment (20%), group presentation (40%) Group presentation (50%), individual assignment (50%) Class participation (35%), group presentation (55%), individual assignment (10%) Group presentation (80%), class participation (20%) Class participation (30%), individual assignment (50%), individual presentation (20%) Group presentation (75%), individual assignment (25%) Individual assignment (100%) Peer review (100%) Group assignment (40%), individual assignment (60%) Individual assignment (100%) Individual assignment (50%), class participation (50%) Group assignment (50%), class participation (10%), inclass test (40%) Individual assignment (100%) Individual assignment (60%), group presentation (40%)Individual presentation (25%), individual assignment (75%)Individual assignment (80%), group presentation (20%) Individual assignment (100%) Class participation (40%), in-class test (60%) Individual assignment (50%), group presentation (30%), class participation (20%) Individual assignment (100%) Individual assignment (85%), class participation (15%) Individual assignment (30%), in-class test (70%) Group presentation (50%), individual assignment (50%) Group assignment (70%), class participation (30%) Individual assignment (60%), group presentation (40%) Class participation (30%), individual assignment (70%) Individual assignment (50%), group assignment (50%) Individual assignment (50%), group assignment (20%), class participation (30%) Individual assignment (70%), class participation (30%) Individual assignment (80%), class participation (20%) Individual assignment (45%), group assignment (30%), inclass test (25%) Class participation (10%), individual assignment (90%) Class participation (20%), group presentation (40%), individual assignment (40%) Group presentation (50%), individual assignment (50%) In-class test (100%) In-class test (50%), individual assignment (50%) Individual assignment (100%) Individual assignment (80%), class participation (20%)

4 (c) Executive M. B. A. course

2012-14 Class

6 (a) Written papers EMBA10 Marketing

6 (b) Course-work

EMBA10 Marketing EMBA17 Leadership in action EMBA19 Personal and professional development EMBA20 Negotiation skills **EMBA9** Macroeconomics

Three-hour written examination (60%)

Individual assignment (40%) Not formally assessed, attendance required at dinners Not formally assessed Not formally assessed Individual assignment (75%), group assignment (25%)

Examination for the degree of Master of Finance, Easter Term 2013

The Faculty Board of Business and Management give notice that in the Easter Term 2013 the subjects for examination for the Master of Finance Degree will be as listed below. The method of examination is shown for each subject.

No written papers are offered in the Easter Term

Group 1– core subjects	
MFIN5 Finance and organizations	Seminar, assessed by attendance
MFIN23 City speaker series	Seminar, assessed by attendance
Group 2 – specialist subjects	
MFIN41 Advanced derivatives	In-class test (100%)
MFIN33 Asian capital markets (open to M.B.A.)	Three-part individual assignment (100%)
MFIN35 Further econometrics	Two open-book individual tests (40% and 60%)
MFIN38 Hedge fund value investing	Individual assignment (70%), presentation (10%), group project (20%)
MFIN31 Infrastructure finance (open to M.B.A., prerequisite)	Individual assignment (30%), in-class test (70%)
MFIN30 International macroeconomics and finance	Individual essay (50%), group work (50%)
MFIN27 Mergers and acquisition	Individual assignments (50%), group work and presentation (50%)
MFIN20 Risk management and hedging in markets	Individual essay (100%)
MFIN40 Overview of financial regulation	In-class test (100%)
MFIN21 The coming of modern capital markets (open to M.B.A.)	In-class test (50%), individual course-work (50%)
MBA44 Venture capital and the entrepreneurial world (MGM12 Paper MBA44)	Group assignment (80%), class participation (20%)
MBA83 Behavioural finance (MGM12 Paper MBA83)	Individual assignment (50%), class participation (50%)
MBA94 Real estate finance and investments (MGM12 Paper MBA94)	Class participation (20%), case briefs (20%), formal assessment (60%)
Droinate	
Projects	
MFIN37 Individual project (optional)	Submitted in the form of a report and can be marked by a project Supervisor but will not be counted towards overall grade

Meeting of the Faculty Board of Economics: Notice

The Chairman of the Faculty Board of Economics gives notice that a conference of University officers in the Faculty and others giving lectures in the Faculty of Economics will be held at 2 p.m. on Wednesday, 1 May 2013 in the Meade Room, Austin Robinson Building, Sidgwick Avenue, for the purpose of considering the Lecture List for 2013-14 and any other matters.

CLASS-LISTS, ETC.

Allowances to candidates for examinations

The Council has made the following allowance to the candidate named below in respect of the examination shown against their name which will be held in the Easter Term 2013:

Vj ku'eqpvgpv'j cu'dggp't go qxgf "cu'kv'eqpvckpu'r gtuqpcnkplqt o cvkqp"rt qvgevgf 'wpf gt 'ij g'F cvc 'Rt qvgevkqp 'Cev0

Approved for degrees, diplomas, and certificates

Vj ku'eqpygpv'j cu'dggp't go qxgf "cu'kv'eqpyckpu'r gtuqpcnkplqt o cykqp"rt qygeygf "ypf gt "yj g'F cyc "Rt qygeykqp"Cev0

Vj ku"eqpvgpv"j cu"dggp"t go qxgf "cu"kv"eqpvckpu"r gtuqpcn"kplqt o cvkqp"r t qvgevgf "vpf gt "ij g"F cvc "Rt qvgevkqp"Cev0

Act for the Degree of Doctor of Medicine

We hereby certify that the following have kept the Act for the Degree of Doctor of Medicine:

Vj ku'eqpvgpv'j cu'dggp't go qxgf "cu'kv'eqpvckpu'r gtuqpcnkplqt o cvkqp'r t qvgevgf 'wpf gt 'y g'F cvc 'Rt qvgevkqp'Cev0

OBITUARIES

Obituary Notice

ROBERT EARL DEWAR, M.A., Visiting Fellow and former Research Fellow of Wolfson College, formerly Senior Fellow of the McDonald Institute for Archaeological Research and Affiliated Lecturer, Department of Archaeology, Emeritus Professor and sometime Head of the Department of Anthropology, University of Connecticut, died on Sunday, 7 April 2013, aged 63 years.

ACTA

Approval of Graces submitted to the Regent House on 13 March 2013

The Graces submitted to the Regent House on 13 March 2013 (*Reporter*, 6301, 2012–13, p. 409) were approved at 4 p.m. on Friday, 22 March 2013.

Approval of Graces submitted to the Regent House on 20 March 2013

The Graces submitted to the Regent House on 20 March 2013 (*Reporter*, 6302, 2012–13, p. 433) were approved at 4 p.m. on Friday, 29 March 2013.

Approval of Graces submitted to the Senate on 20 March 2013

The Graces submitted to the Senate on 20 March 2013 (*Reporter*, 6302, 2012–13, p. 434) were approved at 4 p.m. on Friday, 29 March 2013.

Congregation of the Regent House on 23 March 2013

A Congregation of the Regent House was held at 10 a.m. All the Graces that were submitted to the Regent House (*Reporter*, 6302, 2012–13, p. 434) were approved.

The following degrees were conferred:

Vj ku'eqpvgpv'j cu'dggp't go qxgf "cu'kv'eqpvckpu'r gtuqpcnkplqt o cvkqp"rt qvgevgf "vpf gt "ij g'F cvc "Rt qvgevkqp"Cev0

Vj ku"eqpvgpv'j cu"dggp"t go qxgf "cu"kv"eqpvckpu"r gt uqpcnkplqt o cvkqp"r t qvgevgf "vpf gt "vj g"F cvc "Rt qvgevkqp"Cev0

J. W. NICHOLLS, Registrary

END OF THE OFFICIAL PART OF THE 'REPORTER'

COLLEGE NOTICES

Elections

Fitzwilliam College

Professor Robert Lethbridge is retiring as Master on 30 September 2013. The Governing Body has elected as his successor:

Mrs Nicola Padfield, Fellow of the College and Reader in Criminal and Penal Justice in the Faculty of Law.

Murray Edwards College

Elected to an Research Fellowship from 1 October 2013

Margaret Elizabeth Hartley, CHR, M.A., M.Sci., Cantab, Ph.D., Edinburgh

St John's College

Elected to Honorary Fellowships: Ms Jennifer Egan The Most Reverend Bernard Ntahoturi Professor Jane Stapleton

Elected to a Fellowship under Title B, from 1 April 2013: Nathan MacDonald, M.Phil., M.A., *EM*, Ph.D., *Durham*

Elected to a Fellowship under Title B, from 1 September 2013:

Philip Murray, B.A., CC

Elected to a Fellowship under Title C, from 1 October 2013:

Professor Dame Jessica Rawson, M.A., Litt.D., NH

Elected to Fellowships under Title A, from 1 October 2013:

Timothy Michael Adamo, B.S., Pittsburgh, D.Phil., Oxford

Samuel Ian Albert Cohen, B.A., M.Sci., T

Michael Thomas George Humphreys, B.A., M.Phil., Ph.D., *PEM*

Sichen Shao, B.S.E., Ph.D., *Johns Hopkins* Robert Stewart Weatherup, B.A., M.Eng., *SID*

Vacancies

Downing College: Non-Stipendiary Research Fellowship 2013 in any area of ASNC, Archaeology, Architecture, History of Art, AMES, Classics, Divinity, English, Linguistics, MML, and Music; Fellowship benefits: academic expenses allowance, accommodation, meals, and College benefits package; tenure: three years; closing date: 1 May 2013; further particulars: http://www.dow. cam.ac.uk/index.php/joining-downing/vacancies

King's College: Junior Research Fellowship in History; tenure: from 1 October 2013 for four years; stipend: £19,030–£23,105, according to age and academic qualifications; closing date: 28 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.kings.cam.ac.uk/research/juniorresearch-fellowships.html Lucy Cavendish College: College Teaching Officer in Law; applications are invited from women* for this post; salary: £32,559; closing date: 30 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.lucy-cav.cam.ac.uk/about-us/ vacancies

*The College has exemption from the provisions of the Equality Act 2010 relating to sex discrimination

Pembroke College: Fellow and College Lecturer in Human, Social, and Political Sciences; tenure: from 1 October 2013; salary: £37,382–£47,314; closing date: 30 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.pem.cam. ac.uk/the-college/job-vacancies/

Queens' College: Development Director; tenure: from 1 September 2013; salary: competitive, with an attractive benefits package; closing date: 22 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.queens.cam.ac.uk/generalinformation/vacancies/academic-vacancies/developmentdirector

Chaplain; to take up appointment no later than 1 September 2013; stipend: will be equal to the stipend of an incumbent in the Diocese of Ely, including membership of an appropriate pension scheme, and an attractive benefits package; closing date: 22 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.queens.cam.ac.uk/generalinformation/vacancies/academic-vacancies/chaplain

Trinity Hall: College Teaching Associateship in Law; tenure: from 1 October 2013 for two years; stipend: £12,000 (non-pensionable); closing date: 22 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.trinhall.cam.ac.uk/about/ vacancies/detail.asp?ItemID=46

Events

Newnham College: The inaugural Gillian Vaisey Memorial Lecture, delivered by Professor David Spiegelhalter and entitled *The highs and lows of communicating statistics with the public*, will be held at 5.30 p.m. on 26 April 2013 in the Law Faculty. Further information is available at http://www.newn.cam.ac.uk/At-Newnham/events.

St John's College: Professor Sir Leszek Borysiewicz FRS, Vice-Chancellor, University of Cambridge, will deliver the annual Linacre Lecture at 5 p.m. on Tuesday, 30 April. Further information is available at http://www.joh.cam. ac.uk/.

SOCIETIES, ETC.

Cambridge Philosophical Society

The Society's Inaugural Henslow Fellows Lectures will take place at 6 p.m. on Wednesday, 24 April 2013, in the Bristol-Myers Squibb Lecture Theatre, Department of Chemistry, Lensfield Road.

Dr Ulrike Bauer, Henslow Fellow, will give the first lecture entitled *Turning the tables in plant–animal interactions: the tricks and traps of insect eating plants*, followed by Dr Jimena Berni, Henslow Fellow, who will give the second lecture entitled *Moving without a brain: how do fruit fly larvae explore?*

Further details are available at http://www. cambridgephilosophicalsociety.org/lectures.shtml.

CAMBRIDGE UNIVERSITY REPORTER 464

EXTERNAL NOTICES

University of Oxford

Oriel College: Junior Research Fellowship in Early Modern History; salary: £19,000–£21,000; closing date: 2 May 2013; further particulars: http://www.oriel.ox.ac. uk/content/academic-vacancies

The Queen's College: Bursar; salary: £70,000; closing date: 3 May 2013; further particulars: http://www.queens.ox.ac.uk/vacancies

Junior Research Fellowship in Classics; stipend: £17,412, plus allowances; closing date: 17 May 2013; further particulars: http://www.queens.ox.ac.uk/aboutqueens/vacancies/

St Hilda's College: Stipendiary Lecturer in Early Modern British History; tenure: one year from 1 October 2013; salary: £16,347–£18,385 *pro rata*; closing date: 6 May 2013 by 12 noon; further particulars: http://www.sthildas.ox.ac.uk/news-events-and-vacancies/vacancies

St John's College: Graduate Library Trainee; salary: £15,658; closing date: 10 May 2013 by 12 noon; further particulars: http://www.jesus.ox.ac.uk/vacancies/2013/ april/graduate-library-trainee

University College: Academic Services Manager; salary: £29,541–£36,298 (with a discretionary range up to £39,649), plus generous additional benefits; closing date: 9 May 2013; further particulars: http://www.univ.ox.ac. uk/content/academic-services-manager

Assistant Librarian; salary: £23,352–£27,854; closing date: 19 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.univ. ox.ac.uk/content/assistant-librarian

Other External Notices

Kings College London: Australian Bicentennial Scholarships and Fellowships; one-off awards of up to £4,000; closing date: 19 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.kcl.ac.uk/artshums/ahri/centres/menzies/ scholarships/absf/index.aspx

Notices for publication in the *Reporter* should be sent to the Editor, Cambridge University Reporter, Registrary's Office, The Old Schools, Cambridge, CB2 1TN (tel. 01223 332305, email **reporter.editor@admin.cam.ac.uk**). Copy should be sent as early as possible in the week before publication; short notices will be accepted up to **4 p.m. on Thursday** for publication the following Wednesday. Inclusion of notices is at the discretion of the Editor.

© 2013 The Chancellor, Masters, and Scholars of the University of Cambridge

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted, in any form or by any means, without the prior permission in writing of the University of Cambridge, or as expressly permitted by law.

The University is the owner or the licensee of all intellectual property rights in the site and in the material published on it. Those works are protected by copyright laws and treaties around the world. All such rights are reserved.

Material prepared for the primary purpose of providing information about the University of Cambridge, its teaching and research activities, its subsidiary companies and organizations with which it is associated or affiliated has been placed on the site by the University ('University Material').

Subject to statutory allowances, extracts of material from the site may be accessed, downloaded, and printed for your personal and non-commercial use and you may draw the attention of others within your organization to material posted on the site.